
      

 

 

TIGARD CITY COUNCIL AND CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD

MEETING DATE AND TIME: May 7, 2013 - 6:30 p.m.

MEETING LOCATION: City of Tigard - Red Rock Creek Conference Room
13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Times noted are estimated.

Assistive Listening Devices are available for persons with impaired hearing and should be scheduled for City Center
Development Agency Board  meetings by noon on the Monday prior to the City Center Development Agency Board 
meeting. Please call 503-639-4171, ext. 2410 (voice) or 503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

Upon request, the City will also endeavor to arrange for the following services:

•        Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments; and

•        Qualified bilingual interpreters.

Since these services must be scheduled with outside service providers, it is important to allow as much lead time as
possible. Please notify the City of your need by 5:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the meeting by calling:
503-639-4171, ext. 2410 (voice) or 503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

SEE ATTACHED AGENDA 

 



 

 

TIGARD CITY COUNCIL AND CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD

MEETING DATE AND
TIME:

May 7, 2013 - 6:30 p.m.

MEETING LOCATION: City of Tigard - Red Rock Creek Conference Room - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard,
OR 97223

       

6:30 PM
 

1. CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD MEETING  
 

A. Call to Order- City Center Development Agency
 

B. Roll Call
 

C. Call to Board and Staff for Non-Agenda Items
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Tigard City Center Development Agency will go into Executive Session to
discuss real property negotiations, under ORS 192.660(2) (e). All discussions are confidential and those present
may disclose nothing from the Session. Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive
Sessions, as provided by ORS 192.660(4), but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive
Session may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions
are closed to the public.

 

2.  APPROVE CCDA MINUTES FOR:                                                   6:50 p.m. estimated time

March 5, 2013
April 2, 2013

 

3.  FACADE IMPROVEMENT AND TARGETED IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM UPDATES      
6:55 p.m. estimated time

 

4.  URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT UPDATES                                      7:20 p.m. estimated time
 

5.  UPDATE ON MAIN STREET GREEN STREET PROJECT               7:45 p.m. estimated time
 

6. NON AGENDA ITEMS



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING                            8:05 p.m. estimated time

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Tigard City Council will go into Executive Session to discuss real property
negotiations, labor negotiations, and current litigation or litigation likely to be filed, under ORS 192.660(2) (e)
(d) and (h). All discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session.
Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS 192.660(4), but
must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for the purpose of taking any
final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are closed to the public.

  
 

7. ADJOURNMENT                 8:30 p.m. estimated time
 



AIS-1285       2.             

CCDA Agenda

Meeting Date: 05/07/2013

Length (in minutes):  

Agenda Title: APPROVE CCDA MINUTES

Prepared For: Carol Krager Submitted By: Carol Krager,

City

Management

Item Type: Motion Requested Meeting Type: 

City Center

Development

Agency

Public Hearing 

Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: No 
 

Public Hearing Publication

Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

APPROVE CCDA MINUTES                               

 March 5, 2013

April 2, 2013

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

N/A

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

N/A

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

N/A

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

N/A

Attachments

March 5, 2013 Minutes

Placeholder for April 2, 2013 Minutes



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 1 of 13 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Tigard 
Tigard City Council Special Meeting and CCDA 
Meeting of March 5, 2013

 

   

SPECIAL TIGARD CITY COUNCIL MEETING     

 

1. A. At 6:32 p.m. Mayor Cook called the Tigard City Council meeting to order. 

 B. Deputy City Recorder Krager called the roll.   

           Present    Absent     
Mayor Cook    
Councilor Buehner                    

  Council President Henderson  
  Councilor Snider   
  Councilor Woodard   
 

 Staff present:  City Manager Wine, Assistant City Manager Newton, Community 
 Development Director Asher, Streets and Transportation Senior Project Engineer  
 McCarthy and Deputy City Recorder Krager 
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Mayor Cook announced that the Tigard City Council will   
 enter into an Executive Session to discuss real property transaction negotiations   
 under ORS 192.660(2)(e). Council met in the Red Rock Creek Conference Room. 
 The Executive Session ended at 7:10 p.m. 

3. At 7:10 p.m. City Council adjourned and reconvened in Town Hall for the CCDA meeting,    

 

CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING     

1. A. Chair Cook called the meeting of the Tigard City Center Development Agency  
  to order.  
 
 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 2 of 13 

 

 
 
  
 B. Deputy City Recorder Krager called the roll: 
 

      Present  Absent 
   

CCDA Chair Cook     
CCDA Director Buehner        
CCDA Director Henderson    
CCDA Director Snider     
CCDA Director Woodard    

 
   
 

 C. Call to Board and Staff for Non-Agenda Items – CCDA Director Woodard reported 
  that the March Clackamas River Water Providers meeting was cancelled 

 

2. CONSIDER AWARD OF A TARGETED IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM GRANT  

 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said he was pleased to request CCDA Board 
 approval for the first downtown Tigard targeted improvement grant. The grants are 
 designed to attract and offset tenant improvements for new businesses that would lend 
 vitality to the downtown.  An application from Symposium Coffee was received in response 
 to the RFP and the Façade Improvement Joint Committee reviewed the proposal and 
 gave it  extremely high ratings. Estimates are that it will leverage more than three times the 
 amount in private investment.  He said Symposium Coffee’s owners also have a coffee 
 shop in Sherwood and are interested in remodeling and using the front half of the Tigard 
 Chamber of Commerce building for their business, which will bring 18-hour activity to Main 
 Street.      

 CCDA Director Henderson asked for the Symposium Coffee Shop representatives to give 
 an overview of their business. Director Henderson said he had occasion to drop into their 
 Sherwood location and liked the atmosphere.   

  Kevin Bates, 16419 SW Wildlife Haven Court, Sherwood, Oregon, and Jake Floog, 22472 
SW Washington Street, Sherwood, Oregon were present. 

  Mr. Bates said the Symposium Coffee Shop in Sherwood is a great community living room 
and venue for people to do business.  Their location in Sherwood is an old house with a lot 
of character and they plan to build some of this character into their remodel of the Tigard 
Main Street location.  Business hours in Tigard will be 6:00 a.m. until midnight.    
Symposium features Stumptown Coffee, Steven Smith Tea and utilizes area bakeries, 
including Bridge City from Tigard.  Quiches, sandwiches, lunch and dinner items will be sold 
and there is seating planned for 38 people. Their marketing studies found the same age 
group would frequent the Tigard location as the Sherwood location, with the Tigard location 
providing easier access for college students.  He said their projections indicate they will be 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 3 of 13 

 

successful, doubling projections at their Tigard location and they are excited to be here.  
They project a mid-April opening.  

 CCDA Chair Cook welcomed them to downtown Tigard.    

 There being no further discussion, Chair Cook asked for a motion to approve CCDA 
 Resolution No. 13-01.  Director Snider moved for approval of CCDA Resolution   
 No. 13-01 and Director Woodard seconded the motion. Motion passed. 
 
   CCDA Resolution No. 13-01 - A RESOLUTION AWARDING A  
   TARGETED INVESTMENT PROGRAM GRANT AS RECOMMENDED  
   BY THE FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT JOINT COMMITTEE 
        
       Yes  No 
   

CCDA Chair Cook    
CCDA Director Buehner      (absent) 

  CCDA Director Henderson        
  CCDA Director Snider    
  CCDA Director Woodard   
 
CCDA Chair Cook announced that he may have to leave the meeting early to speak at the Lake 
Oswego City Council meeting about the joint water project.    
    

3. ANNUAL JOINT MEETING WITH THE CITY CENTER ADVISORY COMMISSION   

  Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said the CCAC would present their annual 
 report and 2013 goals.  He said they request CCDA feedback and recommendations on their 
 work plan. He said staff prepared a chart of their work plan and he and Community 
 Development Director Asher will make a presentation to the CCDA. 

 Newly elected CCAC Chair Elise Shearer introduced the following CCAC members in 
 attendance: Commissioners Deanie Bush, Paul Miller, Corinne Arendes, Thomas Murphy 
 and Laura Fisher.  Four other members were unable to attend.   

  Chair Shearer presented the 2012 CCAC Annual Report. 

 Goal No. 1 - Project Infrastructure  

 Main Street Green Street Project: The CCAC maintained an active interest in this 
project, receiving numerous staff updates and advocating for close monitoring of 
construction through completion in 2014.  Reports from Project Manager McMillan 
and the selected construction team to the CCAC regarding mitigation efforts at prior 
job sites indicate that the city is sensitive to the businesses directly affected by the 
upcoming construction.   



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 4 of 13 

 

 Commissioners provided comments and oversight on public art selection for the 
main street gateways, assisted by consultant Valerie Otani, staff and a subcommittee.  
An RFP issued in late summer led to selection of artist Brian Borello. 

 The CCAC has actively worked with staff and CCDA to provide input for potential 
property acquisitions for public plaza space and hope to find a permanent location in 
the immediate future. 

Goal No. 2 - Economic Development 

 The CCAC supported the efforts of downtown businesses and property owners to 
better market the area with events, providing oversight last year to the efforts of 
event coordinator Bridget Bayer.  The CCAC strongly advocates for continued 
funding of these downtown activities. 

Goal No. 3 - Development 

 The CCAC continued to support downtown Tigard. They reviewed the developer 
incentives matrix and advocated implementation with CCDA.  The CCAC improved 
their knowledge of downtown businesses and their customer base using census 
information, cultural demographics, trends and other statistics.   

 CCAC members received feedback from the development community last 
November following the developer outreach effort taken on by city staff.   

 Goal No. 4 – Façade Improvement Program 

 The CCAC promoted the creation of a new tenant improvement program to 
encourage infill of desired businesses.   

 Commissioners continued to provide oversight for the façade improvement program 
by promoting, expanding and adjusting this growing program by joint participation 
in the Façade Improvement Committee. Six matching grants were awarded.  A 
recent, minor adjustment to the program requests that grantees provide sales figures 
to build metrics for measuring program performance. 

 Goal No. 5 - Land Use and Transportation Planning 

 The CCAC reviewed the downtown circulation plan for recommendation before 
 final adoption of the CCDA, and advocated on behalf of priority elements and 
 key projects with the Planning Commission, staff and TTAC. 

 Commissioners provided input on the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).   
 The CCAC works with TTAC and actively participates on Metro’s SW Corridor 

 planning. 

 

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 5 of 13 

 

 

 Goal No. 6 - Communications  

 The CCAC strives to improve communication with other groups by providing 
regular liaisons to PRAB, TTAC, CCDA, Budget Committee and other boards. A 
joint subcommittee with PRAB was formed to facilitate better communication. 

 Goal No. 7 – Ongoing Processes 

 These are items that CCAC works on each year. 

Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said the CCAC members would present their 2013 
Work Plan and feedback from the CCDA is requested. 

Project Infrastructure 

CCAC Commissioner Bush outlined ways the CCAC will help with the Main Street Green 
Street upgrade such as assisting several businesses to upgrade facades, and spending money, 
energy and time to create and foster events to attract customers to the downtown.  During 
construction, Main Street business owners need to be protected so the least destruction is 
caused to their businesses. There will be signs informing customers that the downtown is 
open and letting them know how to access businesses and where to park. Finding locations 
for customer and employee parking is very important. Tigard must carefully orchestrate the 
economic development activities to achieve a healthy vibrant downtown. 

Economic Development 

Commissioner Murphy said, “If infrastructure is the bones of the urban renewal district, 
then economic development is its heart.”  He noted the Tigard City Council adopted 
Ordinance 89-05, creating the City Center Development Agency, 24 years ago. Economic 
Development is the core reason of the urban development. 

 CCAC Commissioner Fisher mentioned the findings of the Blue Ribbon Task Force, 
which highlight the importance of economic development in the downtown area.  The 
CCAC took initiatives in 2011-12 to organize, promote and market downtown businesses. 
She said the CCAC proposes continued support of these positive efforts.   She said the 
CCAC desires to continue to improve their knowledge of the downtown businesses and 
their customer base using market research, census and other statistics.   

  CCAC Commissioner Murphy asked everyone to think back a few years ago and 
remember what Burnham Street used to be and then project ahead and imagine what an 
enhancement Main Street Green Street will be for the downtown.  He said while it is 
underway it could be tough for the Main Street merchants.  It is a CCAC goal to reduce the 
negative impacts as much as possible by drawing on the recent Burnham Street experience, 
utilizing what worked and preventing friction as much as possible.   



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 6 of 13 

 

He said the CCAC hopes to build upon the initiative city staff began in 2012 when they 
interviewed developers to explore what makes downtown Tigard attractive to developers 
and what the barriers are.  He said the CCAC wants to promote the urban renewal district to 
developers and businesses and it is time to revisit the developer incentive matrix and 
examine if the incentives still make sense.  He said the CCAC believes it may be time to 
move forward on land acquisition and assembly in the urban renewal district. 

 Façade Improvement and Targeted Incentive Programs 

CCAC Chair Shearer said these programs help businesses attract more customers and 
improve building façades in the downtown.  Some successful projects include Tigard Liquor 
Store, which was an excellent project to start with as it is in the heart of downtown and very 
visible.  Other successful projects are Sherry’s Jewel Box, Tigard Dry Cleaners, and Rojas 
Market.  She noted that the dry cleaners reused their vintage 50s neon sign.  Tools the 
businesses receive are the ability to put up new awnings, a consultation with an architectural 
paint color consultant, and an upgraded hardscape program for larger projects.  She said the 
CCAC  hopes to continue this program on Main Street and perhaps extend it to other streets 
in the future.  She said the Targeted Incentive Program covers interior renovations.  These 
are expensive so we need to help subsidize improvements. We have a great business 
(Symposium Coffee) starting soon. 

Land Use and Transportation 

CCAC Commissioner Arendes said the three main CCAC transportation concerns are:            
1) limiting impacts to businesses on 99W and Main Street during future construction; 2) 
ensuring access to Main Street as new projects come on line; and 3) improving pedestrian 
access and facilities. There is a lot of potential investment coming with the SW Corridor 
Improvement planning.  She said it is important that the CCAC is there to advocate to the 
TTAC and CCDA on behalf the top three priority connectivity plan elements: 

 Ash Avenue Rail Crossing 
 Scoffins/Hunziker  intersection realignment 
 Commercial/Main intersection realignment. 

She said the CCAC will begin an action plan to cover the remaining years of the urban 
renewal district. 

 CCAC Commissioner Miller spoke about the Façade Program from a business owner’s 
perspective.  He has owned the dry cleaning building on north Main Street since the 1970s 
and said this third attempt to revitalize downtown Tigard is the best yet.   He said the Façade 
Improvement Project is the key.  He used this process and found it easy and the 
communication and help from Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly was excellent.  

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 7 of 13 

 

He noted that surrounding cities have used façade improvements to improve their 
downtowns and it is the difference “between night and day.”   

Communications 

 CCAC Chair Shearer said the CCAC communications goal is to work closely with other 
boards and committees.  Transparency is important.  She said it has been difficult to reach 
certain demographics within Tigard, especially people under age 35. They are seeking ways to 
reach this group, including forms of communication other than the Cityscape or the city’s 
website.   

   Director Woodard commended the CCAC members for sharing and communicating 
 with other city boards and committees and their efforts at transparency.    

CCAC Chair Shearer asked what role the CCAC should play in the CCDA’s Strategic Plan.  
She said, “We are looking to keep downtown healthy and alive and want to know what we 
can do for you.”  Director Woodard referred to three-, five-, ten-, and fifteen- year 
prioritizations and asked them to help council identify things that might be missing.  He 
suggested using previous reports such as the Tigard Visioning Beyond Tomorrow document 
as an audit checklist to see if we remain on track. 

Director Henderson said the CCAC is doing a good job and agreed that it is difficult to 
move from year to year and figure out which of the many important goals are top priorities. 
He suggested that the CCAC makes sure new members are educated and come on board 
understanding the original vision.   

Chair Cook commented that the strategic plan is evolving.  The city’s executive staff is 
working on the process and it will go to the boards and commissions and the public before 
returning to council.  He said there are two spots for CCAC involvement; at the commission 
level and at the public level.  He said the strategic plan is something, “we will build 
together.”  

Chair Cook agreed with the talking points on communication and said using Twitter and 
Facebook is a great start.  He said the city needs to communicate with the public more about 
where we are in each stage of a project.  People hear about a downtown parking lot or the 
Tigard Street Trail but see that the projects are not finished and wonder why.  Yet we are 
actually working on all of these projects.  He said, “We would love to have everything there 
now, but until the developers come forward, we don’t get the tax increment financing 
(TIF’s).”  He advised the CCAC to remain involved.   

Director Woodard referred to Commissioner Murphy’s comments on land assembly and 
said another good strategy is beginning discussions about what type of credits and 
opportunities are available and how we can pull people together.  He urged the CCAC to 
keep looking for opportunities. 

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 8 of 13 

 

  Urban Renewal Staff Work Plan     

Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly explained the mechanics of a bubble chart 
reflecting the urban renewal work plan from a staff perspective. A copy of this chart has 
been added to the packet for this meeting.   

He interpreted the color and size elements of the bubbles.  The size of the circle represents 
the relative impact in achieving the goals of urban renewal.  Orange colored outlines indicate 
brownfield properties.  Blue outlined projects are those currently moving along well.   

In response to a question from Director Henderson, Redevelopment Project Manager 
Farrelly said the level of effort indicates staff’s estimation of their time required.  Director 
Snider noted that it is an indicator of complexity that staff recognizes but may not be 
apparent to others. 

 Community Development Director Asher pointed out four things on the chart: 

 Number of projects – There may be frustration in town that everything is not getting 
accomplished but there are a lot of projects and this represents a full workload for 
staff. If new and different projects arise we need a discussion on subtractions or 
reductions. If we change the work plan we may need to reconsider some of the 
smaller, lower impact projects.  

 Timing of projects – We won’t see any large, highly visible projects for another few 
years.  There will be coffee shops and storefront improvements in the near future 
which is great, but the larger, high visibility projects are a few years out.   

 If in a few years we are not heavily engaged in some pretty complicated and exciting 
redevelopment projects, something has gone wrong.  Community Development 
Director Asher said, “On the one hand I am asking for some patience as we get this 
going, but on the other I am calling out for accountability, because we are not five 
years or ten years away.  We are a just a couple of years away if we can keep on 
track.” 

 Brownfields - This is a near-term and important focus.  Every bubble on the chart 
with an orange ring around it is a brownfield project and indicates a need to get 
ahead of these issues so redevelopment can happen. People may not notice our 
efforts on this but it is a high priority. 

CCDA Director Henderson commented that how well this is done in the downtown will 
resonate to projects in the greater downtown and the rest of the city.  He noted that while 
Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly continues work on this area, the city’s other 
planners are busy at work on other areas of Tigard.  Community Development Director 
Asher added, “It doesn’t take a lot of success. It takes a win to raise the level of confidence 
in people who might want to invest or reinvest here.”  He said this doesn’t detract from any 
work being done anywhere else such as in the Triangle or River Terrace.  

 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly encouraged the CCAC members to stay for the 
 next agenda item and participate in the discussion.       



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 9 of 13 

 

 

4. RECEIVE REPORT ON DEVELOPER INTERVIEWS      

 Consultant Chris Zahas of Leland Consulting Group said they were asked by the city to 
take a fresh look at downtown Tigard through the eyes of a developer. Six developers with a 
history of successful urban development were interviewed to obtain insights on three 
specific opportunity sites. He said he would cover their general opinions on development in 
Tigard and then address the particular sites.   

 Consultant Zahas reported that in general, there is a very positive perception that Tigard 
 is a good place to do business, unlike some jurisdictional neighbors.  Downtown Tigard is 
 one of only a few authentic, downtown main street environments on the west side that is 
 affordable. Being in an urban renewal district adds another layer of financial  flexibility and 
 helps bring brownfield issues to the table.  Brownfields are not unique to Tigard and many 
 downtowns have to contend with those challenges. Urban renewal brings tools to the table 
 and help projects pencil out that otherwise would not.  Small lots and fractured ownership 
 are barriers, making the assembly of land packages desirable. Parking and aging 
 infrastructure are problems that the urban renewal district can help overcome by leveling the 
 playing field for developers. 

Consultant Zahas said from the market perspective, building apartments is strong regionally.  
There is a large pent-up demand with ongoing population growth and changes in 
demographics.  Generation Y and retiring baby boomers are not buying single-family 
dwellings and this fits nicely with the downtown revitalization strategy.  He said real estate 
always moves in cycles and we are in the middle of a 5-7 year window of opportunity to 
introduce multi-family housing and capture development while the market is on an upswing. 
Missing out would mean waiting until the next cycle.  

 Developer reactions to three specific opportunity sites included: 

 1. Corner of Ash and Burnham Streets - The feedback from developers was neutral.   
  Developers approached it as property for a smaller infill or as part of assembly for a  
  larger site.   

 2. Public Works Yard –  There is a very high level of interest in this property,   
  specifically for  apartments. 100 units of housing are possible once you remove  
  floodplain property along the back.  Proximity to Fanno Creek and the Ash Street  
  Dog Park was seen as advantageous. A dog park adjacent to a property is seen as a  
  selling point in recruiting tenants and would alleviate some on-site issues that the  
  developer would otherwise have to accommodate to serve the pets.  He suggested  
  the strategy for the city would be to do an RFQ to select a developer but advised  
  not relocating the Public Works Department until there is a developer at the table  
  and a deal is in place. 

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 10 of 13 

 

  3. Saxony-Pacific – There is also a lot of interest in this property because it is right on  
  Main Street and Fanno Creek.  It has more potential for mixed use rather than  
  housing only. He said it is not just the site that is interesting, but what is going on  
  around it, with the upcoming Main Street Green Street construction, and the   
  improvements to the George Diamond property.  There is also an opportunity to get 
  the Dolans involved in revitalizing their property.  He suggested not looking at it as a 
  single property, but bringing all of the nearby property owners together into a  
  discussion about making something larger happen here so the whole is greater than  
  the sum of its parts.  He said there is a real opportunity to make this happen in the  
  next two years.  

Consultant Zahas summarized that they found each of the three sites is unique.  The public 
works yard is a distinct and immediate opportunity for housing.  It and the Saxony-Pacific 
property were seen as the top two priorities.    In their outreach to the development 
community he saw interest in these two properties.    

   Director Henderson asked about mixed use on Main Street and questioned whether the 
 highway isn’t a negative.  Consultant Zahas said architectural design could mitigate the noise 
 and whether the use is residential or office space, he would expect to orient the building 
 towards the creek or the street, with its back to the highway. Director Henderson asked 
 about the hillside.  Consultant Zahas suggested the city discuss this with the developer and 
 come up with some creative landscaping.  Director Henderson said it is ODOT property 
 and Consultant Zahas agreed that presents a challenge. 

   Director Woodard asked if the developers were concerned about through traffic on 
 south Main Street.  Consultant Zahas replied that if it is purely at peak time and is relatively 
 safe for pedestrians, congestion is OK in a downtown retail environment. Redevelopment 
 Project Manager Farrelly added that there were no specific concerns for existing traffic but 
 they looked forward to the Main Street Green Street project slowing traffic somewhat and 
 making the area more pedestrian-friendly.   

 Director Snider said there are not many opportunities to hear from a business or 
 development community group, and mentioned previous comments that said Tigard was at 
 least better than other local districts.  He asked whether Tigard was good or just better than 
 the worst, and Consultant Zahas said, “You are at least at the good level.” 

 At 8:15 p.m. Mayor Cook left the CCDA meeting to attend a Lake Oswego City Council 
 meeting related to the water partnership. 

  Director Henderson said he was unfamiliar with the developers that were interviewed.    
 Mr. Zahas replied that all on the list have a track record of building quality projects for 
 mixed use or residential.  Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said he can supply links 
 to past  projects to anyone interested. Mr. Zahas said RFPs could include conditions on 
 design  performance standards and milestones of securing tenant or certain levels of 
 financing, etc.  That can give the city assurance that the property will not be handed over 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 11 of 13 

 

 and sit empty because the developer was unable to follow through.  Director Henderson said 
 that addresses his concerns.  

 CCAC Chair Shearer asked about the possibility of a public/private partnership for the 
 land assembly of the Zuber and De’Angelo properties. Redevelopment Project Manager 
 Farrelly said the previous proposal brought to council had too large a funding gap but the 
 city plans on talking with Mr. De’Angelo again in the future.   

  CCAC Chair Shearer mentioned that there are two pots of money available for 
 brownfield development, public money through state and federal sources, plus money for 
 private developers.  Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said the plan is to access those 
 sources through grant opportunities for an initiative to identify and help solve potential 
 contamination problems that may be holding back development.  He will report to the 
 CCAC at their meeting next week.  

 CCDA Executive Director Wine said there has been an effort on the city’s part in the last 
 few weeks to acknowledge that in order for some projects to move forward we need  to 
 address these brownfield issues and leverage the funding available.  Councilor Henderson 
 commented that when public and private entities work together they become a more 
 powerful force to leverage these cleanup funds than either could be alone.  He said cleaning 
 up brownfields also helps neighboring properties and takes care of many problems at once. 

 CCAC Commissioner Murphy said he assumes that Tigard is not the only city looking for a 
 quality developer to set up shop.  He asked what the city can do to remain on a 
 developer’s shortlist.  Consultant Zahas replied that communication is just as important as  
 having a long list of activities.  He suggested making sure word gets out through the city’s 
 website, public meetings and one-on-one outreach to developers.  He advised, “Be patient.  
 Things  take longer than anticipated.  No two (public/private partnerships) are alike so 
 having  leadership at the board level and creativity will send a message to the development 
 community that Tigard ‘gets it.’  Flexibility is crucial.”  He has seen projects fail when cities 
 have been too prescriptive.   

  Richard Shavey, 11371 SW Sycamore, Tigard, OR  referred to the original Leland 
 Consulting Group report from October 2007 and said Leland had organizational 
 recommendations including the appointment of a downtown liaison. The liaison’s primary 
 function would be to simplify the process and strengthen Tigard’s reputation among  the 
 development community.  He said he is working with landowners and others and he does 
 not get the same perception from developers and some of their architects, who find it 
 difficult to work with Tigard.  Consultant Zahas said he worked on that initial report and the 
 city has done some work since to improve things, such as elevating Redevelopment Project 
 Manager Farrelly’s status to act as that downtown liaison and manager for urban renewal.  In 
 terms of perception, things are relative and questions were framed in this round of developer 
 interviews more in terms of how Tigard is doing relative to nearby communities rather than 
 within Tigard itself.   



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 12 of 13 

 

 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly said the original Leland report is six years old and 
 in that time the city staff has become a lot more receptive to development.  He said there are 
 development standards for a reason; developers don’t always see eye to eye on that.  

 Mr. Shavey asked, “Is there a person on staff that walks a development scheme through the 
 process at the city and makes it easy to get a permit in the city?” Redevelopment Project 
 Manager Farrelly said it is more of a team that does that.  CCDA Executive Director  Wine 
 said it depends on the applicant and on the process.  She said there was not a specific 
 assignment on staff.  Mr. Shavey said there is a perception that things are changing and in 
 response to a question from Director Snider said, “This is a good thing.” 

 Director Woodard said the plan is to move towards having a downtown manager.  He said 
 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly is doing a great job but a lot of what Mr. Shavey is 
 talking about would be done through an economic development format.  He said the 
 question is how to pay for that person.  He said he is supportive of the idea but we need to 
 figure out a way to get there. 

 Director Snider said that Mr. Shavey’s message is broader than the downtown. Executive 
 Director Wine said there is a large slate of focus activities a city can do that all come under 
 the heading of economic development, including facilitating applicants through the 
 development process.  She said the downtown association discussion is focused on the 
 existing downtown businesses and their needs, which is a different set of activities.  City staff 
 will be proposing an economic development strategy which focuses on specific activities so 
 Tigard can make the investment suggested by Director Woodard.     

 Director Woodard said he agreed with Director Snider’s comment that we are looking at 
 the entire city, not just the downtown.     

  CCAC Commissioner Murphy said that he was not representing the CCAC for the 
 following comments, but was speaking as a Tigard citizen and Vice President of CPAH 
 (Community Partners for Affordable Housing).  He said the largest project currently in the 
 urban renewal district is the Knoll Senior Housing project by CPAH.  He said he was 
 interested as a citizen, in how the development process was being handled by city staff and 
 he checked frequently about this with CPAH. They reported that they were always treated 
 very well.  He said Tigard is a leader in the county for affordable housing the city did an 
 outstanding job of allowing this project to succeed.  

 Director Woodard said momentum is slow but he is seeing some progress.  He said hits to 
 the economy and budget reductions have not helped. He said he shared Mr. Shavey’s 
 concerns and appreciated his feedback.   

 Redevelopment Project Manager Farrelly announced there will be a visioning session with 
 the artist selected for the downtown artwork on March 27 to get public input.    

  

 



TIGARD CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL / CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY MEETING MINUTES –    MARCH 5, 2013 

 City of Tigard | 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 |   | www.tigard-or.gov |    Page 13 of 13 

 

 

5. NON AGENDA ITEMS -   None 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT        

 At 8:49 p.m. Director Woodard moved for adjournment.  Director Snider seconded the 
 motion and the motion passed.   

  
       Yes   No 

CCDA Chair Cook       (absent after 8:15 p.m.) 
CCDA Director Buehner   (absent) 
CCDA Director Henderson                 

  CCDA Director Snider    
  CCDA Director Woodard   
 
 

 

        
 Carol A. Krager, Deputy City Recorder 
Attest: 

 

 

    
Chair, Tigard City Center Development Agency 
 

Date:     

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Minutes for the April 2, 2013 CCDA 

and City Council Meeting will be attached to 

this Agenda Item Summary on May 2, 2013. 



AIS-1267       3.             

CCDA Agenda

Meeting Date: 05/07/2013

Length (in minutes): 25 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Facade Improvement and Targeted Improvement Programs Update

Submitted By: Sean Farrelly, Community Development

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: 

City Center

Development

Agency

Public Hearing 

Newspaper Legal Ad Required?: No 
 

Public Hearing Publication

Date in Newspaper: 

Information

ISSUE 

Receive updates on Facade Improvement and Targeted Improvement Programs

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

The Board of the City Center Development Agency (CCDA) is requested to receive the program updates.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The City Center Development Agency's (CCDA) Facade Improvement Program commenced in November 2009. The

agency provides architectural design services and 50 percent matching grant funding (up to $25,000) for exterior

improvements to buildings. The goals of the program are for both economic revitalization (encouraging new

investment in an area of mainly small, locally owned businesses), and community development (promoting good urban

design in the unique, walkable “heart” of the community).Recently, there has been renewed interest in the program with

five new applications for design assistance since January 1, 2013. Applications for matching grants are reviewed by

Urban Renewal Improvement Programs Joint Committee, made up of two members of the City Center Advisory

Commission (CCAC) and two members of the CCDA Board.

A total of twenty-one Main Street businesses/properties have received design assistance from CCDA's on-retainer

architects. Eleven matching grants have been awarded. Six of these projects (Tigard Liquor Store, Main Street Stamp

and Stationery, Under Water Works,12215 SW Main, Tigard Main Street Cleaners, and 12564 SW Main ) have been

completed. The CCDA has invested $104,598 in these six completed projects (architectural cots and matching grants.)

This has leveraged approximately $450,000 of additional private investment. Five additional projects are in various

stages of completion (Sherrie’s Jewelry Box, Rojas Market, Symposium Coffee, We Li Acupuncture , and Max’s Fanno

Creek Brew Pub).

The Targeted Improvement Program was established in August, 2012. The program offers a 50 percent matching grant

(up to $75,000) to help offset the costs of interior tenant improvements for targeted business types. Currently, the focus

is on new restaurants, cafes, bakeries or similar businesses. In March, 2013 Symposium Coffee was awarded the first

matching grant for $24,800. The improvements to the Chamber of Commerce building are in progress and the cafe

should be open within a few weeks. The Urban Renewal Improvement Programs Joint Committee will consider what

type of businesses to focus on in the next few weeks to open another round of grant funding.

Both the Facade Improvement Program and the Targeted Improvement Program have helped create a more inviting

environment to shop, recreate, do business, and invest in. They have demonstrated how the public and private sectors

can successfully collaborate to improve the business and visual appeal of Downtown Tigard.



OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL OR CCDA GOALS, POLICIES, MASTER PLANS

City Center Urban Renewal Plan

DATES OF PREVIOUS CONSIDERATION

April 3, 2012 (Facade Improvement Program)

March 5, 2013 (Targeted Improvement Program)

Fiscal Impact

Cost: 143,165

Budgeted (yes or no): Yes

Where Budgeted (department/program): CCDA

Additional Fiscal Notes:

Total costs for the Façade Improvement Program since 2009 are $143,165.

For FY2012-13, of the budgeted $115,000 for the Façade Improvement Program, $105,000 has been expended or

encumbered (grants pending for project in progress.)

For FY2012-13, of the budgeted $75,000 for the Targeted Improvement Program, $24,800 has been encumbered

(grant pending for project in progress.)

Attachments

Facade Improvement Tracking

PowerPoint



 

Façade Improvement Program 

Fiscal Year
Properties/Businesses  Receiving 
Design Assistance

Design assistance 
complete

Architectural 
Services Costs

Matching grant 
awarded

Grants actually 
paid

Compelted 
Projects Total 
Cost (incl. arch 
costs)

T

tPrivate Inv. 
Leveraged Status

FY 09‐10 Tigard Liquor Store Y $3,686 $25,000 $25,000 $28,686 $55,000 complete
Main St. Stamp & Stationery Y $2,312 $4,485 $4,485 $6,797 $5,050 complete
Underwater Works Y $3,000 $7,781 $7,781 $10,781 $11,000 complete
American Family Insurance building Y $3,000 on hold

FY 10‐11 12460 Main (former Lab 33) N $1,457 Terminated (New business in location‐ Jeffrey Allen)
Tigard Wine Crafters N $1,470 on hold (used sign design)
Tigardville Station N $1,755 on hold

  Wei Li Acupuncture Y $1,580 $1,094 in progress (scaled back project)
12215 Main (former Tigard Fitness) Y $5,222 $9,581 $9,581 $14,803 $9,581 complete

FY11‐12           Dolan Properties (A‐Boy) N $1,923    
   Sherrie's Jewelry Box Y $2,580 $13,013     in progress

Café Allegro Y $4,139 grant application pending
 Main Street Cleaners Y $3,107 $16,624 $16,624 $19,731 $69,367 complete
Live Laugh Love Glass Y $3,631 $25,000 on hold
12564 Main (Diamond) Y $5,050 $25,000 $18,750 $23,800 $301,060 complete
Rojas Market Y $2,719 $4,775 in progress

FY 12‐13 Chiropractor N $1,103

Tigard Cleaners N $1,856

Kepplers Upholstery N $1,856

Fanno Creek Brewpub Y $3,945 $25,000 in progress
Chamber/Symposium Coffee Y $2,814 $12,500 in progress
Jeffrey Allen Home & Garden N $3,123

Total  22 properties 13 $61,328 $169,853 $82,221 $104,598 $451,058 6 complete, 5 in progress



City 
ofn 

Tigard 
Respect and Care | Do the Right Thing | Get it Done 

City Center Development Agency Board 
 May 7, 2013 

Façade and Targeted 
Improvement Programs 

Progress Update 



City of Tigard 

Façade Improvement Program 
• Started 2009 
• Goals 
• Funded by Tax Increment Financing generated in the 

downtown urban renewal district 
 



City of Tigard 

How the Program Works 
  
 
• Business/property owner applies 
• Meet with architects  (30-40 hours of design work) 
• Joint committee reviews and awards grant 
• Agency and applicant sign Commitment Letter 
• Project completed by applicant 
• Once completed, work is inspected, receipts reviewed  
• Property/business owner is reimbursed 

 
 

 



City of Tigard 

Statistics 
 • 22 properties/businesses have received/ are receiving  

architectural design assistance 
• 6 grant awarded projects completed 
• 4 grant awarded projects currently in progress 
• 5 new applications since January 1, 2013 

 
 

 



City of Tigard 

Completed Projects 



 
Tigard Liquor Store: Before 

 



After 
 

Completed: 2010 
Grant: $25,000 



  

 

Under Water Works before 



After 

Completed: 2011 
Grant: $7,781 



Main St. Stamp & Stationery before 



After 

Completed: 2011 
Grant: $4,485 



Former Tigard Fitness 



Completed:2012 
Grant : $9,580 



Tigard Main St. Cleaners before 



After 

Completed: 2012 
Grant: $16,620 



12564 SW Main St. (Diamond Property) 
before  



After 

Completed 2013 
Grant  $18,750 



City of Tigard 

Projects awarded grants, in progress 



Sherrie’s Jewelry Box 





Rojas Market 



 



Max’s Fanno Creek Brewub 





Pacific Paint (formerly A-Boy) 





City of Tigard 

Targeted Improvement Program 
• Established in August, 2012.  
• Offers a 50 percent matching grant (up to $75,000) to 

help offset the costs of interior tenant improvements  
• Targeted business types  (currently, the focus is on 

new restaurants, cafes, bakeries or similar businesses.)  



Symposium Coffee 



TIP grant: $24,000 awarded 
Façade grant : awarded $12,500 



City of Tigard 

Metrics 
• Private Investment Leveraged 

o $104, 598 in costs for completed projects leveraged 
approximately $451,000 in private investment 

• Sales 
• Anecdotal 



AIS-1278       4.             

CCDA Agenda

Meeting Date: 05/07/2013

Length (in minutes): 20 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Urban Renewal Project Updates

Submitted By: Sean Farrelly, Community Development

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: 

City Center Development

Agency

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Downtown Urban Renewal Project Updates

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

The Board of the City Center Development Agency is requested to receive the project updates.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

• Tigard Area Farmers Market Move: Representatives of the market will talk about the market’s move to a new location

within the urban renewal district: the parking lot of the Tigard Public Works building at the corner of Burnham Street

and Hall Blvd. City staff have worked closely with the market on the move.

• Downtown Events: Debi Mollahan of the Tigard Area Chamber of Commerce will provide an update on Downtown

Events including the Main Street Street Fair

• Staff will provide an update on the Main Street Gateway Art project

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

N/A

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

City Center Urban Renewal Plan

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

N/A



AIS-1279       5.             

CCDA Agenda

Meeting Date: 05/07/2013

Length (in minutes): 20 Minutes  

Agenda Title: Main Street Green Street Project Update

Prepared For: Kim McMillan Submitted By: Sean Farrelly, Community

Development

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff Meeting Type: 

City Center Development

Agency

Public Hearing: No Publication Date: 

Information

ISSUE 

Receive a project update from Project Manager Kim McMillan on the Main Street Green Street retrofit project.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION / ACTION REQUEST

The Board of the City Center Development Agency is requested to receive the project update.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY

The Main Street/Green Street retrofit project will reconfigure Main Street and improve vehicular, bicycle, and

pedestrian circulation. Project improvements include:

•Wider sidewalks

•Landscaping

•New street lighting

•Street trees

•Stormwater planters

•Pedestrian safety enhancements

The project is nearing final design and engineering. Right-of-way is currently being acquired for the project. The bid

date is currently set for September 26, 2013. Construction is expected to start in earnest after the holidays, in January

2014.

The project is funded through a $2.5 million, federally-funded grant from Metro. The city is required to provide

$650,000 in matching funds.

 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES

COUNCIL GOALS, POLICIES, APPROVED MASTER PLANS

Tigard Downtown Streetscape Design Plan

City Center Urban Renewal Plan

DATES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL CONSIDERATION

January 24, 2012


	Agenda
	Item02  APPROVE CCDA MINUTES
	Item02_Att1_March 5, 2013 Minutes
	Item02_Att2_Placeholder for April 2, 2013 Minutes

	Item03  Facade Improvement and Targeted Improvement Programs Update
	Item03_Att1_Facade Improvement Tracking
	Item03_Att2_PowerPoint
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	�Tigard Liquor Store: Before�
	After�
	 
	After
	Main St. Stamp & Stationery before
	After
	Former Tigard Fitness
	Slide Number 13
	Tigard Main St. Cleaners before
	After
	12564 SW Main St. (Diamond Property)�before 
	After
	Slide Number 18
	Sherrie’s Jewelry Box
	Slide Number 20
	Rojas Market
	Slide Number 22
	Max’s Fanno Creek Brewub
	Slide Number 24
	Pacific Paint (formerly A-Boy)
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Symposium Coffee
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30


	Item04  Urban Renewal Project Updates
	Item05  Main Street Green Street Project Update

